M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 05, 2002
9:40 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 5, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:40 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donal d O son

Al so Attending: ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent
and Budget; DEVEN M TCHELL, Debt WManager, Treasure Division,
Departnent of Revenue

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

SB 247- REAPPROPRI ATI ONS & CAPI TAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Conmittee heard an overview fromthe Ofice of Managenent and
Budget and the Departnent of Revenue. The bill was hel d.

#SB247

SENATE BI LL NO. 247

"An Act nmaking capital appropriations and reappropriations,
and capitalizing funds; naking appropriations under art. 12X
sec. 17(c), Constitution of the State of Alaska, from the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance

SFC- 02 (1) 02/ 05/ 02



Conmittee.

Co-Chair Kelly noted the purpose of this neeting is to hear an
overview of the FY 03 capital budget as proposed by Governor Tony
Know es. He stated that the Comm ttee woul d have an opportunity to
hear presentations on specific projects from departnent
representatives in future hearings.

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget,
shared that the Departnent has "a tremendous anount of information”
about the FY 03 proposed capital budget avail able on the Internet
via the Ofice of Managenent and Budget website at
WV, gov. st at e. ak. us/ onb.

Ms. MConnell stated that 65 percent, the |largest share of the
funding is allocated to transportation projects. She noted this is
consistent with previous years. She pointed out the next | argest
increnent of 17 percent is for health and safety projects. She
referenced a handout: Governor Know es' Proposed FY 2003 Capital
Budget Overview [copy on file.], which lists the projects by mgjor
cat egori es.

Ms. McConnell stressed the proposed budget |everages the maxi num
anmount of federal funds possible. She stated that 73 percent of the
total budget proposal is federal funds. She noted the general fund
source conprises 12 percent of the budget and represents the sane
dol I ar amount of $114 million, as the current budget.

Ms. McConnell then spoke of dividend funding sources included in
t he proposed capital budget: the Al aska Housing Fi nance Corporation
(AHFC) dividend, the Alaska Industrial Developnent and Export
Authority (AIDEA) dividend and the Postsecondary Education
Conm ssi on dividend. She commented that a "positive trend in recent
years" has been to include AHFC and Al DEA di vidends in the capital
budget rather then the operating budget. This budget, she said,
proposes to transfer the Postsecondary Education Conm ssion
di vidend as wel | .

Ms. McConnell stated this budget reflects "sonme pretty significant
i ncreases” in the amount of general funds necessary to secure
federal funds. For exanple, she said approximately $20 million
addi ti onal general funds are needed for transportation projects and
$4.7 mllion for water and sewer projects.

Ms. McConnell informed the anmount of federal funds available is
| ess then in the FY 02 budget, which had included $93 nmillion for
"earmarked" specific projects and $33 mllion for Al aska Marine
Hi ghway System projects. She assured there "is still a lot of

SFC- 02 (2) 02/ 05/ 02



unknown territory in the federal budget for this year"” and that
funding has been allocated later in the year than normal. The
del ays, she attributed to the increased attention devoted to
honel and security. As a result of the delays, she shared that
amendnments would continually be submtted to this budget to reflect
upcom ng federal appropriations.

Ms. McConnel | renmarked other state matching fund appropriations are
included in this budget that are not for identified priority
projects, but rather are necessary to neet new federal requirenents
relating to child protection and health insurance. She expl ai ned
that recently adopted federal |aws provide that the state nust make
"substantial changes"” to the managenent information system She
sai d these appropriations are included in the Departnment of Health
and Soci al Services portion of the budget and utilize federal funds
and mat chi ng general funds.

Ms. MConnell comented the "general fund/ match"™ category has
historically been used in project proposals to indicate that state
general funds are necessary to garner federal funding. However, she
said a simlar category does not exist in the detailing for those
projects utilizing AHFC dividends and ot her non-general funds as
the required matching funds. She gave sewer and water projects as
an exanple. As a result of this discrepancy, she said the actual
anount of state funds necessary to garner federal funding is
understated. She suggested creating a designation for the non-
general funds used as matching funds.

Ms. McConnell next addressed bond proposals, which although not
i ncluded as part of the proposed capital budget, "could play a very
|l arge role in our capital infrastructure proposals for the public
this year."” She stated that two bond proposals exist for the
current fiscal year and in addition, the Governor recently
submtted two new bond proposals to the Legislature.

Ms. McConnell spoke to the recent proposals, one of which requests
$212 nmillion for school construction and major maintenance. She
told of the decision to include these projects in a general
obligation bond package rather then as a part of the regular
capital budget. She surmi sed that if bond proposals receive voter
approval in the next three general elections, the entire backl og of
school construction and nmajor repair projects would be addressed.
At this point, she continued, it would be possible to have an
annual capital budget of between $80 and $100 nmillion specific to
schools that would be paid with "cash" or bond revenues. She
concluded this nmethod would address rural and urban needs
t hroughout the state.

SFC- 02 (3) 02/ 05/ 02



Ms. McConnell listed the deferred naintenance bond proposal for
$136 nmillion as the second proposal submitted this session. She
spoke to the efforts of the legislative Deferred Mai ntenance Task
Force in identifying the needs.

Ms. McConnell remarked the reason for recomendi ng the four bond
proposals at this tine is the "particularly good environnent right
now for bonding." She explained that interest rates are currently
| ow, which could be advantageous. She relayed that Governnent
Fi nance Associ ates, the state's bond advi sors, were consulted and
subsequent|ly advised, "The long-termtax-exenpt interest rates have
been at their present |low levels only about ten percent of the tine
since 1983." In addition, she said, the advisors instructed that
changes to federal tax regulations relating to the conparative
rating currently under consideration could make the bond market
| ess desirable in the future.

Ms. McConnell shared that Adm nistration had consi dered whether to
include all of the requested deferred mai ntenance projects in the
bond package or to include sone in the FY 03 capital budget
proposal. The decision was nade, she said, to list sone of the
projects in the capital budget in order to maintain the "basic
| evel " of funding for deferred mai ntenance projects in the capital
budget. She gave as one reason the assunption that even with a bond
package, basic repair needs to ensure the |life of a facility, such
as roof repairs, would remain. She also noted the difficulty in
"restoring"” these expenditures in a budget once they have been paid
wi th other one-tinme funds.

Ms. McConnell next advised there would be no debt service incurred
on these bonds in FY 03 due to the tineline involved and when t he
bonds woul d be sold. She stated that the total naxi num debt service
for the four bond packages woul d be approximately $39 mllion, and
woul d be approximately $29 million in FY 04.

Ms. McConnell noted that the intent of the proposed bond package
for harbor projects is to continue the process of previous AHFC and
tobacco settlenment funded bonds, "to bring harbors up to basic
| evel of good repair"” then transfer ownership to | ocal governnents.
She Ilisted the benefits to local comunities as economc
devel opment potential and the elimnation of dependency on the
state governnent to perform mai ntenance and repair. She noted the
current bond package addresses the remaining harbor projects in
comunities that are "willing and able"” to take ownership.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if every project included in the current

har bors bond package has the purpose of conducting repairs and
i nprovenents to allow transfer of ownership.

SFC- 02 (4) 02/ 05/ 02



Ms. McConnell responded that only one project is not connected to
an ownership transfer. She detailed the U S. Corps of Engineers
project in Wangell and explained it is included in the package to
coincide with several other Wangell harbor projects that are tied
to ownership transfers, which would allow all Wangell projects to
be undertaken sinultaneously.

Ms. McConnell stated that anendnents to the current harbor bond
package would be submitted to add several projects located in
communities that were unable to assunme ownership when the origina
package was conpiled. She noted that 31 harbors would be
transferred from state to l|local ownership, nmany in the sane
communities. She listed the total package anount as $39 million in
revenue bonds, which would be repaid with proceeds from the
exi sting marine fuel tax.

Co-Chair Kelly then asked about the Certificate of Participation
(COP) process and how it is applied to deferred nmaintenance
proj ects.

Ms. McConnell replied that rather then issuing a | ease for every
facility that has a deferred nmmintenance project; four or five
select facilities would "stand in" for the whol e package.

DEVEN M TCHELL, Debt Manager, Treasury Division, Departnent of
Revenue, testified the COP structure has been used in the past for
stand-al one facilities, such as the recent Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services |aboratory in Anchorage, the Fairbanks Courthouse,
Kenai Courthouse, and the Spring Creek Correctional Facility in
Seward. He expl ained the nethod of granting a title interest to a
trustee bank, after which the Departnment of Adm nistration enters
into a lease with that trustee bank for the anmount of the debt
service on bonds that would then be sold. He said this lease is the
"revenue streant that provides the security to bond hol ders, thus
the nane: certificate of participation, since the bondhol ders are
participating in the |l ease through the certificates they purchase.
At the termof the | ease, he continued, ownership, or lien interest
held by the trustee bank, is relinquished and the free and clear
title is returned to the State of Al aska.

M. Mtchell next spoke of the differences in how this process
would be applied to a nmultitude of smaller deferred naintenance
projects. He anticipated that a few of the highest value facilities
woul d be selected and that |eases for these facilities would be
offered. He expanded saying, a |imted nunber of |eases would
represent value to bondholders in an anmount that could | everage a
revenue stream through those |eases to pay debt service on the

SFC- 02 (5) 02/ 05/ 02



bonds.

Co-Chair Kelly requested further explanation. He understood that a
specific anmpbunt of funds are needed to undertake the dozens of
deferred nmai ntenance projects and that a trustee bank "hol ds the
paper” for these funds, but he questioned why there is no actual
property involved as there is in a | ease. He asked what is purpose
of selecting a limted nunber of high value facilities.

M. Mtchell responded the reason for having a |limted nunber of
facilities is ease of transaction. He stated that issuing over 200
title interests, one for each facility with a proposed deferred
mai nt enance project, would not be practical.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified that the title of a facility in a stand-
alone project is given to a trustee bank in the anobunt of the
estimated cost of the proposed project. He asked if in this
deferred mai ntenance situation, titles for a few facilities would
be issued with liens in the amount estimated to conplete the
projects for all the facilities. He likened this nethod to using
the value of a few facilities as collateral

M. Mtchell affirnmed and added that the trustee bank and the
bondhol ders are not interested in ownership of the facilities in
the sane manner a nortgage holder is not interested in owning a
borrower's house. He noted the State of Al aska nakes a "pl edge" to
provi de an annual appropriation to cover debt service, which he
said is the "strength behind" the COP.

Senat or Hoffman asked if the trustee bank purchases insurance to
protect against the possibility of future legislatures failing to
make debt service appropriations.

M. Mtchell replied that there are not specific insurance
requirements. He qualified that the state is required to insure the
facility offered for lease in the sane manner it nust insure any
state-owned facility. He pointed out however, there is "a nmeans of
adding value to the transaction” through bond insurance. He
el aborated that the deferred naintenance bond package would be
considered a typical state-supported debt and would receive a
rating of "A" conpared to the "AA" rating the state receives for
its general obligation bonds. He said the |ower rating is because
of the "lesser pledge" involved. He continued that bond insurance
could be purchased for an "up front fee", which correlates to an
interest rate increase, and would increase the rating from"A" to
"AAA". He said the increased rating provides additional security to
bondhol ders; in the event the state failed to pay, the claimwould
be honored through this insurance. In this instance, he renarked,

SFC- 02 (6) 02/ 05/ 02



the insurance conpany would then pursue the state directly for
repaynent.

Senat or Hof f man ref erenced other pending |egislation sponsored by
Senator Green relating to a COP for construction of correctiona
facilities throughout the state. He asked if the process would be
the sanme for correctional facility projects as the wtness
descri bed regardi ng deferred mai ntenance projects.

M. Mtchell responded the process would be "simlar but
different”. He explained Senator Geen's |egislation provides for
the state to enter into | eases with the communities in which the
facilities would be | ocated. The communities, he continued, would
i ssue | ease revenue bonds to provide inprovenents to the facilities
then assune joint ownership of the facilities. He said this would
be simlar to the situation involving the Anchorage Fourth Avenue
Jail since the state's revenue stream would provide security to
bondhol ders.

Senat or Hof fman next addressed the proposed $212 million bond
package for school construction and nmaj or nmai ntenance projects. He
asked for confirmation that construction of the included projects
woul d occur over a two-year period, and it would be hoped that
future |l egislatures and adm ni strati ons woul d address the remai ning
identified projects. He asked why all the identified projects are
not included in one bond package as opposed to the current plan to
divide the projects into three bond proposals to be presented to
voters in consecutive general elections. He stated that under the
current plan voters would have to be educated on the nmatter
repeatedly and convinced nore than once to vote for a bonding
nmeasure. He suggested concentrating the efforts into "one sales
pitch."

Senat or Hof f man comment ed t hat because Al aska has not undertaken a
maj or school construction effort for several years, only three new
schools were built the previous year and "very few were
constructed in rural areas in prior years.

Ms. McConnell responded the matter could be addressed using either
nmet hod. She said the current plan divides the nunber of projects
into three portions of approximately $200 mllion each; however, if
conbi ned into one bond package, it could be clarified that actual
construction woul d occur over a period of several years.

Ms. MConnell added the school bond package gives "significant
advantage” to comunities. She explained that npbst urban schoo
construction projects have been funded through school debt
rei mbursenent prograns with state reinbursenent of 70 percent,

SFC- 02 (7) 02/ 05/ 02



which requires the comunity to bond for 100 percent of the project
cost using their own debt capacity. In contrast, she said this bond
package woul d provide the state's 70 percent share to the community
in the formof a grant. This nethod, she continues, also provides
assurance to |l ocal governnments that the state would contribute its
full debt paynent. She noted there had only been one instance where
the legislature failed to appropriate the full reinbursenent, but
it is still a concern. She added that this nmethod is nore cost
effective as well, because the state's bond rating is higher then
municipalities and lower interest rates could be secured. She
remar ked school superintendents have supported this nmethod for the
af orenenti oned reasons.

Senat or Leman then spoke to the harbor transfers effort, which he
wor ked on as a nenber of the legislative Deferred Mai ntenance Task
Force. He relayed that the task force oversaw several repair
projects with subsequent ownership transfers. He asked if this bond
proposal includes assurances that once the repair and mai nt enance
projects are conpleted the transfers would actually occur.

Ms. McConnell replied the bond package is structured to stipulate
that before the naintenance and repair projects are started, an
agreenent is entered into with the community. She noted the first
ownership transfers were voluntary and the repair and nai nt enance
projects were funded with AHFC bonds, which do not require
ownership transfer. She recommended ownership transfer requirenents
for the proposed bond package projects.

Senat or Leman supported transferring ownership of har bor
facilities. He pointed out the witness' earlier testinony stated
the projects consist of basic maintenance and repair itens. He
consi dered these as operating expenses, although he understood sone
mai nt enance and repair expenses are "over and beyond" basic on-
goi ng needs. He asked for clarification that the proposed projects
were not for basic needs.

Ms. McConnel|l agreed that on-going maintenance could be addressed
in the operating budget. However, she attested the proposed
projects in this bond package are "gray area," because the needs
have accunulated to the point that they could be considered as
capi tal expenditures.

Ms. MConnell qualified the proposed deferred maintenance bond
package includes sone expansion or replacenent projects. She
expl ai ned these are instances where it has been determned that it
is not feasible to repair the existing facility, such as the
Ket chi kan Public Safety Building. She suggested that to attenpt to
upgrade the existing facility would only "pour good noney after

SFC- 02 (8) 02/ 05/ 02



bad".

Ms. McConnell continued the proposed deferred nmaintenance bond
package al so includes $4 mllion for projects relating to veteran’'s
housi ng. She stated these funds would match $6 mllion federa
funds for the purpose of addressing housi ng needs for veterans who
are ineligible for the Pioneers' Honmes, due to age restrictions,
but still require assisted |iving.

Ms. McConnell recomended the deferred maintenance bond package
contain a "specific appropriate an anount per departnent” as is
practiced currently with deferred mai ntenance appropriations in the
capi tal budget.

Ms. McConnell al so noted the package contai ns separate categories
for Anericans Wth Disabilities Act (ADA) projects at the
University of Al aska and other governnment facilities. She pointed
out that several |arge ADA upgrade projects are on the statew de
priority list and would require nore funds then are normally
appropriated in the regular capital budget for facility upgrades.

Ms. McConnell infornmed that detailed information is available on
the Internet about the estimted cost of each project. She
cautioned that not all expenses could be anticipated. As an

exanple, she gave a scenario of a roof repair project wth
additional structural damage discovered once the old roof is
renoved. However, she said, cost overruns would be absorbed within
the bond allocation of the affected departnent rather then
reall ocated froma different departnent.

Senat or Austernman assuned sone of the figures listed in the handout
are estimtes because they do not equal the total ampunts shown in
the summary. He asked the sinplest manner for himto |ocate and
review the other fund sources invol ved.

Ms. MConnell referred to page 42 of the bill, which lists the
appropriation anount proposed for each departnent. Page 46, she
continued, has the aggregate total of every funding source for al
departnents. In addition, she noted the capital project sumrary
|ists the anpbunt of each funding source for every project.

Senat or W1 ken noted past conversations about G ant Anticipation,
Revenue Vehicles (GARV) bonds. He surm sed this m ght be the year
deci de whether to take action. He suggested a Conmttee neeting to
focus solely on GARV bonds to address concerns raised and gather
i nformati on necessary to nmake educated deci sions on the nmatter. He
informed he has five specific questions. He also recomended
notifying mnunicipality representatives of this neeting and

SFC- 02 (9) 02/ 05/ 02



encouraging them to observe for education purposes as well. He
predicted this would foster discussions that could be based on an
equal | evel of understanding.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed this was a good idea and assured such a
neeti ng woul d be schedul ed.

Ms. McConnell offered to address Senator W/ ken' s five questions
bef orehand, which she surm sed m ght raise additional questions.

Ms. McConnell suggested it could helpful to | ook at debt service in
the sane matter. She shared that it has been debated whether to
i ncl ude debt service paynents in the capital budget rather then the
operating budget to nore accurately reflect capital expenditures.

Ms. MConnell elaborated on her earlier statenents about the
advant ages of addressing capital infrastructure at this tine. She
said that in addition to the cost advantages of taking action now,
other "large capital intensive efforts.are on the horizon,"
including a natural gas pipeline and mlitary expansion. She opined
the current "bidding atnosphere" is nore advantageous then it woul d
be with other |arge projects underway. She al so stressed the need
ensure the level of construction activity is within the instate
capacity to undertake these projects. Oherw se, she cautioned,
out-of -state contractors woul d be needed, which would not benefit
Al askan wor kers.

AT EASE 10:22 AM/ 10:22 AM

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10:23 AM

SFC- 02 (10) 02/ 05/ 02



